
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

August 22, 2023 (Hybrid Meeting) 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Citizen Recognition 

4. Commissioner Absence 

5. Communications  

6. Approve minutes of August 8, 2023 Commissioner meeting 

7. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers:  199585-199930 $    238,715.34 
 Payroll Vouchers 199841-199857: $    934,096.75 
  SUBTOTAL VOUCHERS: $ 1,172,812.09   

 ACH Payroll Transfer: $ 1,053,746.26 
 941 Payment – ACH Payroll Transfer $    229,214.25 
 Wire Transfer Fees $             80.00   
  SUBTOTAL PAYROLL ACH TRANSFERS: $ 1,283,040.51 

GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS AND ACH TRANSFERS:   $ 2,455,852.60 

8. Local 3390 Reports  

9. Chiefs Reports 

10. Standing Committee Reports 

11. Finance Report K. Hackmeister  

12. Chairman’s Report 

13. 2022 Bond Update 

14. OLD BUSINESS     
a.  
b.   
 

15. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 2023-09 – Acquisition of Personal Property  K. Hackmeister 
b. Resolution 2023-10 – LOCAL Program Reimbursement  K. Hackmeister 

 

16. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

17. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

18. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS   

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be September 12, 2023, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
August 8, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Entze and Sutich, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. Oldenburg and 
S. Booth, Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister (virtual) and EA T. VanderVaate.   

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Sutich and Entze moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioners Wilsie and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Commissioner Nelson’s 
absence from today’s meeting. With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by 
unanimous roll call vote. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Sutich and Entze moved and seconded approval of the July 25, 2023 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Entze and Wilsie moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
199770-199840 for a total consideration of $382,161.36.  With no further discussion, the 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Booth reported: 
 The District’s L&I grant application was approved, totaling just under $21,000. The funds 

will be used to purchase an extractor and dryer for our new training facility and additional 
flash hoods to improve our decon process on emergency incidents.  Discussion followed. 

 Tier 1 stakeholders of the MACC group met recently, with the meeting being facilitated 
by Amy Gillespie of DEM.  The group will meet again soon and hope to have a new plan 
in place before year-end. 

 Friday, August 4th, we responded to a high-angle rope rescue, assisted by several other 
area agencies. 



 
Board of Commissioners 

08‐08‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 Our former fleet mechanic Sonny Putnam received a heart transplant this week and is 
recovering well.  Discussion followed. 

 National Night Out on August 1 was well attended, with a lot of community support at 
our booth. 

 
Chief Oldenburg reported: 
 District staff are moving forward with the State Local purchase program.  No action is 

needed today; more information and Resolutions will be presented to the Board on August 
22, 2023. 

 FEMA Safer Grant desk review/audit is complete.  The District received a non-material 
finding regarding District employee contacts not being current.  An appeal has been filed 
disputing the finding.  District staff have worked diligently for the last 16 months to update 
contacts with FEMA and followed all directions.   

 
Chief Doan reported: 
 Thanked the Board for their support and assistance in getting the general levy ballot 

measure passed.   
 Advised the Board that former Fire Commissioner Dave Watson passed away over the 

weekend.  The District will assist and help the family as needed. 
 He will be attending a South Sound 911 study session tomorrow morning and attending a 

PSCOC meeting Friday morning. 
 He has received several calls from Fox Island residents regarding the WSRB rating with 

concerns about their insurance rates rising.  Unfortunately, the District is unable to change 
or improve the rating given by WSRB.  Chief Doan is attending the FICRA Fair on 
August 12 and is prepared to answer any questions residents may have. 

 South Kitsap Fire & Rescue Chief Faucett contacted him because our crews were first in 
on a CPR call recently.  Work continues on CAD to CAD response across the County 
border. 

 On August 5, Engine 53 and Battalion 519 assisted Graham Fire with coverage so their 
responders could attend the funeral services of Battalion Chief Todd Jensen.  Discussion 
followed. recently passed away. 

 An announcement is out for hiring a new fleet mechanic. 
 Station 52 will undergo light maintenance and repairs in a few weeks.  Crews will be 

relocated to Station 53 temporarily. 
 Some time ago, Citizen Karl Kreitzer suggested a possible cost-saving measure if the 

District could obtain a sales tax exemption from the City and County.  Neither the City 
nor County are willing to do this, and while the Chief felt it was a good idea, he has 
exhausted his resources and will not be pursuing it any further.   

 District Staff, along with Commissioners Entze and Wilsie, will be attending mediation 
with Union representatives on Friday. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Commissioner Entze affirmed that the Labor Management Committee members will be 



 
Board of Commissioners 

08‐08‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

attending mediation Friday. 
 
Commissioner Urvina reported that the Audit Committee will participate in the audit exit 
interview next Thursday. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Doan reported on behalf of Chief Johnson (currently deployed) that there isn’t much new to 
report.  Chief Johnson attended a work session with City representatives regarding water 
connection.  The Station 51 Design Committee met and Chief Doan expressed his high-level 
expectations and will now let the Committee members do their work. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Personal Services Contract – Information Systems Manager.  Chief Oldenburg presented a Personal 

Services Contract for the new Information Systems Manager and requested Board approval.  
Commissioners Entze and Wilsie moved and seconded a motion to approve the Contract.  With no 
further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED with Commissioner Sutich being the only no vote. 

B. Mid-Year Finance Report.  Krystal Hackmeister presented a mid-year finance report. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:34 pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, August 22, 2023. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 



 
Board of Commissioners 

08‐08‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199858 through 199858 58,363.50$                58,363.50$                          
199859 through 199894 85,713.69$                85,713.69$                          

144,077.19$              144,077.19$                        
 

144,077.19$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: August 8, 2023
APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 8/9/23

















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199895 through 199930 90,638.15$                90,638.15$                          

90,638.15$                90,638.15$                          

 

90,638.15$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: August 15, 2023

APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 8/16/23















PAYROLL: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199841 through 199857 934,096.75$       934,096.75$        
(Benefit & L&I Monthly Payment)

1,053,746.26$    1,053,746.26$     
941 ACH Payroll Transfer Amount: 229,214.25$       229,214.25$        

Wire Fees Transfer Amount: 80.00$                80.00$                 

2,217,137.26$   GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL:

VOUCHER APPROVAL: August 7, 2023
APPROVED BY AC Oldenburg 

ACH Payroll Transfer Amount:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 11:41:28 Date: 08/07/2023

08/25/2023 To: 08/25/2023 Page: 1

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

   199841 AFLAC 2681 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 2,283.09

   199842 BHT BUSINESS SERVICES 
INDUSTRY

2682 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 7,754.91

   199843 COLUMBIA BANK 2683 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 22,942.57

   199844 DEPT LABOR & INDUSTRIES 2684 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 87,722.31

   199845 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY 
DEPT - PFMLA

2685 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 12,680.22

   199846 GHFFU HEALTH & WELFARE 2686 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 97,842.64

   199847 KEY BANK - DECISION POINT 2687 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 209,687.71

   199848 KEY BANK - FIDELITY 2688 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 15,207.52

   199849 LOCAL 3390 GHFUHW TRUST 2689 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 206,008.17

   199850 Local 3390 GHFUHW Trust 2690 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 16,990.74

   199851 THE HARTFORD 2691 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 7,160.72

   199852 TRUSTMARK VOLUNTARY 
BENEFITS

2692 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 6,687.15

   199853 VISION SERVICE PLAN - AT 2693 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 69.45

   199854 WA CARES FUND - LTC 2694 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 2,623.59

   199855 WASHINGTON PER SYSTEM
EMP

2695 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 21,197.85

   199856 WASHINGTON STATE 
TREASURER

2696 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 19,950.00

   199857 WLEO & FFR SYSTEM EMPE 2697 08/25/2023 Payroll 1 197,288.11

934,096.75Total Vouchers:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 11:41:28 Date: 08/07/2023

08/25/2023 To: 08/25/2023 Page: 2

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

Commissioner Signatures:

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________
Chair

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________

==

________________________________________  

=

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and unpaid 
obligation against Pierce County Fire District #5 and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said 
claim.

=

________________________________________    _______________
District Secretary                                                              Date                                                                         

=



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5
Monthly Financial Dashboard Report
Jul‐2023 July 31, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES Amended Budget July YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Taxes 32,153,373           96,226          17,630,682   54.83% Expected

Intergovernmental 1,744,125              105,111        1,711,779     98.15% Expected

Charges for Service 1,674,399              245,056        1,359,439     81.19% Expected

Other/Non‐Revenue 142,135                 18,182          172,266        121.20% Expected

Transfers/BFB Carryover 1,175,243              ‐                 ‐                 0.00% Budget Amendment Items

Total Revenues: 36,889,275           464,575        20,874,166   56.59% Expected

OPERATING EXPENSES: Amended Budget July YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Salaries 22,983,970           1,686,651     12,549,813   54.6% Expected

Benefits 6,885,138              517,683        3,777,650     54.9% Expected

Supplies 1,959,898              170,162        786,028        40.1% Expected

Services 3,731,016              208,807        1,597,168     42.8% Expected

Capital Improvements 1,011,000              89,145          581,217        57.5% Expected

Debt Service ‐                         ‐                 ‐                 0.0% N/A

Transfers ‐                         ‐                 ‐                 0.0% N/A

Total Expenses:  36,571,022           2,672,447     19,291,875   52.8% Expected

EXPENSES BY DIVISION: Amended Budget July  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Legislative 381,694                 17,482          175,075        45.9% Expected

Finance & Admin 2,350,674              150,312        1,128,877     48.0% Expected

Operations 24,776,080           1,822,253     13,008,534   52.5% Expected

Logistics 6,631,065              544,365        3,377,651     50.9% Expected

Health & Safety 2,127,666              112,783        1,388,105     65.2% Expected

Capital/Bond 303,843                 25,253          213,634        70.3% Expected

Total Expenses:  36,571,022           2,672,447     19,291,875   52.8% Expected

CAPITAL FUND (BOND): Amended Budget July  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Project Management 501,343                 ‐                 5,483             1.1% Expected

Training Campus 8,005,845              80,975          957,494        12.0% Expected

Station 57 244,291                 5,622            166,842        68.3% Expected

Station 53 100,458                 416                155,634        154.9% Expected

Station 51 749,432                 3,360            3,360             0.4% Expected

Total Capital Projects: 9,601,369              90,373          1,288,813     13.4% Expected

ENDING CASH: 12/31/2022 7/31/2023 12/31/2021 Highlights: 

General Expense  12,624,848           12,792,612   11,941,200  

Reserve Fund 6,961,915              8,399,646     6,847,720    

Capital Fund* 50,139,722           50,362,306   ‐                 *Restricted use for eligible projects

Debt Fund (GO BOND) 143,711                 1,053,871     ‐                

PCSORT* 110,878                 106,810        134,772         *Restricted, GHFMO is Lead Agency 

Total: 69,981,074           72,715,247   18,923,692  



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-09 
August 22, 2023 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection 
District No. 5 hereby adopts the following resolution authorizing the acquisition of personal 
property and execution of a financing contract and related documentation relating to the 
acquisition of said personal property. 
 
 WHEREAS, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 d/b/a Gig Harbor Fire & 
Medic One (the “Local Agency”) has executed a Notice of Intent to the Office of State 
Treasurer, in the form of Exhibit A (the “NOI”) to the form of Local Agency Financing Contract 
attached hereto (the “Local Agency Financing Contract”), in relation to the acquisition of and the 
financing of the acquisition of the Property, as defined below, under the provisions of RCW 
ch 39.94; and 

 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the Board of Fire Commissioners 
of the Local Agency that the Local Agency acquire the equipment and/or personal property 
identified in the NOI (the “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the Board of Fire Commissioners of 
the Local Agency that the Local Agency enter into the Local Agency Financing Contract with the 
Office of the State Treasurer in an amount not to exceed $2,145,000, plus related financing costs, 
in order to acquire the Property and finance the acquisition of the Property; 

 WHEREAS, the Local Agency will undertake to acquire the Property on behalf of and as 
agent of the Washington Finance Officers Association (the “Corporation”) pursuant to the terms 
of the Local Agency Financing Contract, and in accordance with all applicable purchasing statutes 
and regulations applicable to the Local Agency; and 

 WHEREAS, the Local Agency desires to appoint the individuals set forth in Exhibit C to 
the form of Local Agency Financing Contract as the representatives of the Local Agency in 
connection with the acquisition of the Property and execution of the Local Agency Financing 
Contract (each an “Authorized Agency Representative”);  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Gig 
Harbor Fire & Medic One as follows: 

Section 1. The individuals holding the offices or positions set forth in Exhibit C to the form 
of Local Agency Financing Contract are each hereby appointed as a representative of the Local 
Agency in connection with the acquisition of the Property and execution of the Local Agency 
Financing Contract and all other related documents. A minimum of two (2) Authorized Agency 
Representatives shall be required to execute any one document in order for it to be considered duly 
executed on behalf of the Local Agency.  

Section 2. The form of the Local Agency Financing Contract attached hereto is hereby 
approved. The Authorized Agency Representatives are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver the Local Agency Financing Contract, in an amount not to exceed $2,145,000, plus 



 
related financing costs, and in substantially the form attached hereto with such changes as may be 
approved by the Authorized Representatives, for the acquisition of the Property and financing of 
the acquisition of the Property.  

Section 3. The Local Agency hereby authorizes the acquisition of the Property as agent of 
the Corporation in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Local Agency Financing 
Contract. 

 Section 4. The Authorized Representatives are hereby authorized to execute and deliver to 
the Office of State Treasurer all other documents, agreements and certificates, and to take all other 
action, which they deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the financing of the Property, 
including, but not limited to, any amendment to the NOI and agreements relating to initial and 
ongoing disclosure in connection with the offering of securities related to the financing. 

Section 5. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5, this 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

      DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
District Secretary 



Transaction No. 1257-9-1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FINANCING CONTRACT, SERIES 2023C 
(Personal Property) 

 
by and between the 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

 
and 

 
Pierce County Fire Protection District 5, Pierce County, Washington 

a municipal corporation 
(“Local Agency”) 

 
Relating to 

 
State of Washington 

Certificates of Participation, Series 2023C 
(State and Local Real and Personal Property) 

 
 

Dated as of November 15, 2023 
 



 

-i- 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS; CONSTRUCTION; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS; 
SUPPLEMENTS..................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.1 Definitions, Construction, Miscellaneous Provisions, Supplements .......... 2 
Section 1.2 Notice of Intent, Personal Property Certificate and Certificate 

Designating Authorized Local Agency Representative .............................. 2 
Section 1.3 Performance by Representatives ................................................................. 2 
Section 1.4 Installment Sale and Purchase of Property ................................................. 2 
Section 1.5 Agency Installment Payments..................................................................... 2 
Section 1.6 Term ............................................................................................................ 3 

ARTICLE II SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY .............................................................. 3 
Section 2.1 Local Agency Financing Contract Consolidated with Master 

Financing Contract ...................................................................................... 3 
Section 2.2 Appointment as Agent; Acquisition of Property; Revision and 

Substitution of Property .............................................................................. 3 
Section 2.3 Title to the Property .................................................................................... 4 
Section 2.4 Security Interests ......................................................................................... 5 
Section 2.5 Disclaimer of Warranties ............................................................................ 5 

ARTICLE III AGENCY INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS; CONDITIONAL PAYMENT 
BY STATE; FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATION .................................. 6 

Section 3.1 Agency Installment Payments..................................................................... 6 
Section 3.2 Sources of Payment of Agency Installment Payments ............................... 6 
Section 3.3 No Set-Off ................................................................................................... 7 
Section 3.4 Assignments by the Corporation ................................................................. 7 

ARTICLE IV OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT OF AGENCY INSTALLMENT 
PAYMENTS ........................................................................................................... 8 

Section 4.1 Optional Prepayment .................................................................................. 8 
Section 4.2 Revision of Agency Installment Payments upon Optional 

Prepayment ................................................................................................. 8 
Section 4.3 Discharge of Local Agency Financing Contract ......................................... 8 

ARTICLE V REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND 
AGREEMENTS ...................................................................................................... 9 

Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties of the Local Agency ................................ 9 
Section 5.2 Covenants and Agreements of the Local Agency ..................................... 10 

ARTICLE VI EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES ................................................................. 14 
Section 6.1 Agency Event of Default .......................................................................... 14 
Section 6.2 Rights of State Upon Agency Event of Default ........................................ 15 
Section 6.3 No Remedy Exclusive; Non-Waiver ........................................................ 15 



 

-ii- 

ARTICLE VII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .................................................................... 16 
Section 7.1 Indemnification of State and the Corporation ........................................... 16 
Section 7.2 Third Party Beneficiaries .......................................................................... 16 
Section 7.3 Notices to Agency ..................................................................................... 17 

 

Exhibit A – Notice of Intent 
Exhibit B – Personal Property Certificate 
Exhibit C – Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives 
Exhibit D – Schedule of Agency Installment Payments 

 

 



 
 

-1- 

LOCAL AGENCY FINANCING CONTRACT  
(Personal Property) 

This Local Agency Financing Contract (the “Local Agency Financing Contract”), is 
entered into by and between the state of Washington (the “State”), acting by and through the State 
Treasurer (the “State Treasurer”), and the Local Agency (as defined on the cover hereto), a 
municipal corporation of the State (the “Local Agency”). 

RECITALS 

The Parties are entering into this Local Agency Financing Contract based upon the 
following facts and expectations: 

1.  Chapter 39.94 RCW (the “Act”) authorizes the State to enter into financing contracts 
for itself, including for state agencies, departments or instrumentalities, the state board for 
community and technical colleges, and any state institution of higher education (defined in 
Appendix 1 as “State Agencies”), for the use and purchase of real and personal property by the 
State; and 

2.  the Act also authorizes the State to enter into financing contracts on behalf of certain 
“other agencies” (defined in Appendix 1 as “Local Agencies”), including the Local Agency, for 
the use and acquisition for public purposes of real and personal property by such Local Agencies; 
and 

3.  the Act authorizes the State Finance Committee to consolidate existing or potential 
financing contracts into master financing contracts with respect to property acquired by one or 
more State Agencies or Local Agencies (together, “Agencies”); and 

4.  Chapter 43.33 RCW provides that the State Treasurer shall act as chair of the State 
Finance Committee and provide administrative assistance for the State Finance Committee, and 
the State Treasurer on behalf of the State Finance Committee has established a consolidated 
program for the execution and delivery of certificates of participation in master financing contracts 
in series from time to time in order to provide financing or refinancing for the costs of acquisition 
of such real and personal property by Agencies; and 

5.  the State Finance Committee has approved the form of this Local Agency Financing 
Contract by Resolution No. 1190 adopted on October 31, 2016; and 

6.  simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Local Agency Financing 
Contract, the State is entering into a Master Financing Contract, dated as of the Dated Date (the 
“Master Financing Contract”) with the Washington Finance Officers Association (the 
“Corporation”), a Washington nonprofit corporation, to provide financing for the costs of 
acquisition of certain items of personal property by certain State Agencies and Local Agencies, 
including the Local Agency, under the terms set forth therein; and 

7.  the Local Agency has determined that it is necessary and desirable to enter into this 
Local Agency Financing Contract, in conjunction with the State’s entry into the Master Financing 



 
 

-2- 

Contract, to obtain financing or refinancing for the costs of acquisition of certain items of personal 
property described in Exhibit B (the “Property”), by the Local Agency;  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein and for other valuable consideration, the Parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS; CONSTRUCTION; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS; SUPPLEMENTS 

Section 1.1 Definitions, Construction, Miscellaneous Provisions, Supplements.  
Appendix 1 is incorporated as part of this Local Agency Financing Contract by this reference.  
Appendix 1 provides (i) definitions for the capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this 
Local Agency Financing Contract; (ii) certain rules for interpreting this Local Agency Financing 
Contract; (iii) miscellaneous technical provisions that apply to this Local Agency Financing 
Contract; and (iv) rules on how this Local Agency Financing Contract may be amended or 
supplemented. 

Section 1.2 Notice of Intent, Personal Property Certificate and Certificate Designating 
Authorized Local Agency Representative.  Exhibits A, B, C and D to this Local Agency Financing 
Contract are incorporated as part of this Local Agency Financing Contract by this reference.  The 
Local Agency has delivered a Notice of Intent to the State Treasurer in the form of Exhibit A. In 
order to evidence its acceptance of the Property financed and acquired pursuant hereto, the Local 
Agency has executed and delivered, or will execute and deliver within 60 days from the Dated 
Date to the State Treasurer, a Personal Property Certificate in the form of Exhibit B.  The Local 
Agency has delivered a Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives to the State 
Treasurer in the form of Exhibit C.  That Certificate is currently in force and has not been amended, 
withdrawn or superseded, and the signatures shown thereon are true and correct originals of the 
signatures of the persons who hold the titles shown opposite their names.  The signature of any 
one of the individuals shown on that Certificate is sufficient to bind the Local Agency under this 
Local Agency Financing Contract with respect to any of the undertakings contemplated herein. 

Section 1.3 Performance by Representatives.  Any authority granted or duty imposed 
upon the State hereunder may be undertaken and performed by the State Treasurer or the Treasurer 
Representative.  Any authority or duty imposed upon the Local Agency hereunder may be 
undertaken and performed by the Authorized Agency Representative. 

Section 1.4 Installment Sale and Purchase of Property.  The State agrees to sell to the 
Local Agency, and the Local Agency agrees to purchase from the State, all of the State’s right, 
title and interest in and to the Property and all proceeds and profits from the Property, subject to 
the security interest granted pursuant to Section 2.4.   

Section 1.5 Agency Installment Payments.  In consideration of the sale of the Property 
and the covenants and agreements of the State in this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local 
Agency promises to pay to the State the following amounts at the following times:  (a) On each 
Agency Installment Payment Date, the Agency Installment Payment set forth in Exhibit D, 
consisting of an Agency Principal Component and/or an Agency Interest Component as set forth 
in Exhibit D; and (b) all Additional Costs incurred by the State in connection with the sale of the 



 
 

-3- 

Property to the Local Agency, the execution and delivery of the Certificates, and the observance 
and performance of the Series Agreements, within 30 days following receipt of an invoice from 
the State that includes (i) a brief description of each Additional Cost, (ii) the party to whom 
payment is due, (iii) the amount thereof, and (iv) such additional information as the Local Agency 
may reasonably request. 

Section 1.6 Term.  The term of this Local Agency Financing Contract shall commence 
on the Dated Date and shall terminate on the date on which all amounts due hereunder shall have 
been paid or the payment thereof duly provided for pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof. 

ARTICLE II 
SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 

Section 2.1 Local Agency Financing Contract Consolidated with Master Financing 
Contract.  The Local Agency acknowledges that the State Treasurer, acting on behalf of the State 
Finance Committee, has consolidated this Local Agency Financing Contract with the Master 
Financing Contract pursuant to RCW 39.94.030(1)(a). 

Section 2.2 Appointment as Agent; Acquisition of Property; Revision and Substitution 
of Property. 

 Appointment as Agent.  The Local Agency accepts its appointment in the Master 
Financing Contract as agent of the Corporation in connection with the acquisition of the Property, 
and acknowledges that such appointment is irrevocable and shall not be terminated by any act of 
the Local Agency, the State Treasurer or otherwise. 

 Acquisition of Property.  The Local Agency agrees that (i) it has caused or will 
cause the Property to be acquired, as agent for the Corporation, with all reasonable dispatch; (ii) it 
will negotiate or call for bids for the purchase of the Property in accordance with the requirements 
and limitations, if any, imposed by State or local law with respect to the purchase of such Property 
by such Local Agency; (iii) it will make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, 
agreements, orders, receipts, documents, writings or instructions with or to any Person and do all 
other things that may be necessary or desirable to acquire the Property; and (iv) it will pay or cause 
to be paid the Costs of Acquisition of the Property from funds available to it pursuant to this Local 
Agency Financing Contract and the Master Financing Contract.  The Local Agency shall file 
requisitions with the State Treasurer for the Acquisition Costs of the Property or reimbursement 
therefor in such form as the State Treasurer shall reasonably require.  Neither the Corporation nor 
the State shall have any responsibility, liability or obligation with respect to the selection or 
procurement of any of the Property. 

 Revision and Substitution of Property.  The Local Agency, with the prior written 
consent of the State Treasurer, may revise any item of Property to be financed or refinanced and 
acquired pursuant hereto, or the description thereof; provided, that (i) such item of Property as so 
revised shall satisfy the requirements under this Local Agency Financing Contract and the Master 
Financing Contract with respect to the substitution of Property previously acquired; (ii) the Costs 
of Acquisition of such item of Property shall not be materially reduced thereby; and (iii) any such 



 
 

-4- 

revision shall not relieve the Local Agency of its obligation to acquire the Property in accordance 
herewith and with the Master Financing Contract. 

After acquisition of an item of Property, the Local Agency, with the prior written consent 
of the State Treasurer as agent for the Corporation, may substitute for an item of Property acquired 
pursuant to this Local Agency Financing Contract other personal property by filing with the State 
Treasurer a certificate of the Local Agency stating that such substitute Property (i) has a remaining 
useful life equal to or greater than the Property for which it is being substituted; (ii) has a fair 
market value equal to or greater than the fair market value of the item of Property for which it is 
being substituted; (iii) is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except a first priority security 
interest in favor of the Corporation under the Master Financing Contract; (iv) is essential to the 
Local Agency’s ability to carry out its governmental functions and responsibilities; and (v) is 
expected to be used by such Local Agency for the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract.  
The State Treasurer’s consent to any such substitution as agent for the Corporation will be 
conditioned upon receipt by the State Treasurer of an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that such 
substitution will not cause interest evidenced and represented by the Certificates to be includable 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code.  The State Treasurer also may 
require the Local Agency to reimburse the State Treasurer for all costs incurred, if any, to obtain 
such Opinion of Counsel. 

 Payment for Property if Acquisition Fund Not Sufficient.  If money in the 
Acquisition Fund allocable to the Local Agency is not sufficient to pay the Acquisition Costs of 
the Property in full, the Local Agency shall cause the Acquisition Costs of such Property in excess 
of the allocable amount in the Acquisition Fund to be paid from other money of such Local 
Agency.  Neither the Corporation nor the State Treasurer as agent for the Corporation for the 
disbursement of funds from the Acquisition Fund makes any representation or warranty, either 
express or implied, that the money which will be deposited into the Acquisition Fund allocable to 
the Local Agency will be sufficient to pay the Acquisition Costs of the Property.  Neither the 
Corporation nor the State Treasurer as agent for the Corporation for the disbursement of funds 
from the Acquisition Fund shall have any obligation or liability for the payment of the Acquisition 
Costs of the Property other than from the proceeds of the Certificates and any other amounts that 
may be provided by the Local Agency.  If the Local Agency shall pay or cause the payment of any 
Acquisition Costs in excess of the allocable amounts in the Acquisition Fund available for such 
purpose from other funds, the Local Agency shall not be entitled to any reimbursement from the 
Corporation or the State Treasurer as agent for the Corporation for the disbursement of funds from 
the Acquisition Fund for such payments, nor shall the Local Agency be entitled to any diminution, 
reduction, abatement, postponement, counterclaim, defense or set-off of the Agency Installment 
Payments, Additional Costs or other amounts otherwise required to be paid hereunder. 

Section 2.3 Title to the Property.  All right, title and interest in and to the Property shall 
transfer to and be vested in the Local Agency from the State without any further action by the 
Local Agency or the State immediately upon the acquisition thereof by the Local Agency as agent 
for the Corporation or reimbursement to the Local Agency for the Acquisition Costs thereof; 
provided, that the State and the Local Agency shall take such action and execute such documents 
(including without limitation bills of sale and other title documents) as may be deemed necessary 
or desirable by the State or the Local Agency to evidence and confirm such transfer of title pursuant 
to this Local Agency Financing Contract. 



 
 

-5- 

The State assigns to the Local Agency during the term hereof, for so long as no Agency 
Event of Default, Event of Default or other event permitting termination of this Local Agency 
Financing Contract has occurred and is continuing hereunder, all representations, warranties and 
guaranties, if any, express or implied, with respect to the Property from the manufacturers, 
suppliers and vendors thereof, subject, however, to a reservation by the State and the Corporation 
of a right to independently enforce such warranties and guaranties. 

Title to any and all additions, modifications, improvements, repairs or replacements to the 
Property shall be vested in the Local Agency, subject to the security interest of the Corporation 
until payment of all amounts due and owing with respect to such Property under this Local Agency 
Financing Contract. 

Any Property constituting a motor vehicle subject to registration with the State Department 
of Licensing shall be registered with the Local Agency as the registered and legal owner thereof. 

Section 2.4 Security Interests. 

 State Security Interest.  In order to secure the payment and performance by the State 
of its obligations under the Master Financing Contract, the State has granted to the Corporation a 
lien on and security interest in all right, title and interest of the State, whether now owned or 
hereafter acquired, in and to the Property and this Local Agency Financing Contract, including 
without limitation the Agency Installment Payments and all proceeds thereof.  The Local Agency 
agrees to such grant and that its right, title and interest in and to the Property is subject to such first 
priority lien and security interest. 

 Local Agency Security Interest.  In order to secure the payment and performance 
by the Local Agency of its obligations under this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local 
Agency grants to the Corporation a lien on and security interest in all right, title and interest of the 
Local Agency, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, in and to the Property.  Accordingly, 
this Local Agency Financing Contract constitutes a security agreement.  The Local Agency 
acknowledges and agrees that each provision of this Local Agency Financing Contract is also a 
provision of the security agreement. 

If required by the Corporation, the Local Agency will execute and deliver to the Trustee 
such security agreements, financing statements and/or other instruments covering the Property and 
all accessions thereto. 

Section 2.5 Disclaimer of Warranties.  The Local Agency acknowledges and agrees that 
the Property is of a nature, size, design and capacity selected by the Local Agency pursuant to its 
own specifications, and not by the State or the Corporation, and that neither the State nor the 
Corporation is a manufacturer, supplier or a vendor of such Property. 

The Corporation makes no warranty or representation, either express or implied, and 
assumes no responsibility, liability or obligation, as to the value, design, condition, merchantability 
or fitness for a particular purpose or fitness for use of the Property, or as to the title thereto, or for 
the enforcement of the manufacturers’, suppliers’ or vendors’ representations or warranties or 
guaranties, or any other representation or warranty with respect to the Property.  In no event shall 
the Corporation be liable or responsible for any incidental, indirect, special or consequential 



 
 

-6- 

damages in connection with or arising out of this Local Agency Financing Contract or the use by 
the Local Agency of the Property. 

ARTICLE III 
AGENCY INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS; CONDITIONAL PAYMENT BY STATE; 

FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATION 

Section 3.1 Agency Installment Payments.  Each Agency Installment Payment shall 
consist of an Agency Principal Component and/or an Agency Interest Component as set forth in 
Exhibit D to this Local Agency Financing Contract.  Interest shall accrue and be calculated as 
determined by the State Treasurer, which determination shall be binding and conclusive against 
the Local Agency absent manifest error.  Each Agency Installment Payment shall be paid to or 
upon the order of the State Treasurer by electronic funds transfer (or by other means acceptable to 
the State Treasurer) in lawful money of the United States of America at such place as the State 
Treasurer shall direct in writing not less than 10 Business Days prior to the Agency Installment 
Payment Date.  Payments of Additional Costs shall be made to or upon the order of the State 
Treasurer.  Each Agency Installment Payment shall be applied first to the Agency Interest 
Component, and then to the Agency Principal Component. 

Section 3.2 Sources of Payment of Agency Installment Payments. 

 Local Agency Financing Contract.  The Local Agency acknowledges and agrees 
that the State is acquiring the Property from the Corporation for and on behalf of the Local Agency.  
Concurrently with the execution hereof, the State shall execute and deliver the Master Financing 
Contract pursuant to which the State agrees to make Installment Payments for the acquisition of 
the Property for and on behalf of the Local Agency, at such times and in such amounts as provided 
therein, which will be sufficient in the aggregate to pay the Purchase Price of the Property to be 
acquired by the State for and on behalf of the Local Agency, and interest thereon.  The Local 
Agency pledges its full faith and credit to make the Agency Installment Payments that are required 
to be paid under this Local Agency Financing Contract. 

Installment Payments allocable to the Purchase Price of the Local Agency Property and 
interest thereon shall be payable by the State solely from Agency Installment Payments to be made 
by the respective Local Agencies, including the Local Agency, except as otherwise provided in 
Sections 3.2(c) and 3.2(d) of the Master Financing Contract and Sections 3.2(b) and 3.2(c) of this 
Local Agency Financing Contract.  

 Intercept of Local Agency Share of State Revenues.  In the event that the Local 
Agency fails to make any payment due under this Local Agency Financing Contract, pursuant to 
RCW 39.94.030(1), the State Treasurer shall withhold an amount sufficient to make such payment 
from the Local Agency’s share of State revenues or other amounts authorized or required by law 
to be distributed by the State to the Local Agency; but (i) only if the use of any such revenues or 
amounts to make such payments is otherwise authorized or permitted by State law, and (ii) only to 
the extent the Local Agency is otherwise entitled to receive such share of State revenues or other 
amounts.  Such withholding shall continue until all such delinquent payments have been made.  
Amounts withheld by the State Treasurer pursuant to this Section 3.2(b) shall be applied to make 
any such payment due under this Local Agency Financing Contract on behalf of the Local Agency, 



 
 

-7- 

or to reimburse the State for any such payment made pursuant to Section 3.2(c).  The Local Agency 
authorizes, approves and consents to any such withholding. 

 Conditional Payment of Local Agency Installment Payments.  Upon the failure of 
the Local Agency to make any Agency Installment Payment at such time and in such amount as 
required pursuant to this Local Agency Financing Contract, the State shall, to the extent of legally 
available appropriated funds and subject to any Executive Order reduction, make such payment 
into the Agency Installment Payment Fund (established under the Master Financing Contract) on 
behalf of such Local Agency within 15 Business Days after such Agency Installment Payment 
Date.  The Local Agency shall reimburse the State for such payments made on its behalf 
immediately thereafter and in any case not later than 10 Business Days after such Agency 
Installment Payment Date, together with interest thereon at a rate equal to the State Reimbursement 
Rate.  Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, failure of the Local Agency to reimburse 
the State for any such payment shall not constitute an Agency Event of Default, but the State may 
institute such legal action and pursue such other remedies against the Local Agency as the State 
deems necessary or desirable, including, but not limited to, actions for specific performance, 
injunction and/or the recovery of damages. 

 Payments by Local Agency Treasurer.  The treasurer of the Local Agency shall 
establish and/or maintain a special fund in the “bonds payable” category of accounts of the Local 
Agency for the purposes of paying the Local Agency’s Agency Installment Payments and 
Additional Costs.  The treasurer of the Local Agency shall remit each Agency Installment Payment 
to the State on each Agency Installment Payment Date and any Additional Costs when due 
hereunder from any legally available funds of the Local Agency. 

Section 3.3 No Set-Off.  The obligation of the Local Agency to make Agency 
Installment Payments from the sources set forth herein and to perform its other obligations 
hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional.  The Local Agency shall make Agency Installment 
Payments as and when the same shall become due without diminution, reduction, postponement, 
abatement, counterclaim, defense or set-off as a result of any dispute, claim or right of action by, 
against or among the State, the Corporation, the Trustee, any Agency, and/or any other Person, or 
for any other reason; provided, that nothing in this Section 3.3 shall be construed to release or 
excuse the State from the observance or performance of its obligations hereunder. 

Section 3.4 Assignments by the Corporation.  The Local Agency acknowledges and 
agrees that, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Local Agency Financing Contract, 
the Corporation will unconditionally assign to the Trustee pursuant to the Master Assignment, 
without recourse, (i) all of its rights to receive the Installment Payments under the Master 
Financing Contract, (ii) all of its remaining right, title and interest in, to and under the Master 
Financing Contract and this Local Agency Financing Contract, and in and to the Property 
(including any security interest therein), in consideration for the payment by the Trustee to the 
State Treasurer, as agent of the Corporation, of the proceeds of the sale of the Certificates.  The 
State and the Corporation have acknowledged and agreed that such assignment by the Corporation 
is intended to be a true sale of the Corporation’s right, title and interest, and that upon such 
assignment the Corporation shall cease to have any rights or obligations under the Master 
Financing Contract or with respect to the Property, and the Trustee shall thereafter have all the 
rights and obligations of the Corporation under the Master Financing Contract as if the Trustee 



 
 

-8- 

had been the original party thereto. Except where the context otherwise requires, every reference 
in the Master Financing Contract and this Local Agency Financing Contract to the Corporation 
shall be deemed to be a reference to the Trustee in its capacity as assignee of the Corporation.   

ARTICLE IV 
OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT OF AGENCY 

INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.1 Optional Prepayment. 

 The Local Agency may, at its option and upon approval of the State Treasurer, 
prepay its Agency Installment Payments then unpaid, in whole or in part on any date, by causing 
to be deposited with the State Treasurer money and/or Government Obligations in an amount 
sufficient for the State to provide for the payment or defeasance of the portion of its Installment 
Payments corresponding thereto in accordance with Section 4.1(a) or 4.1(b), respectively, of the 
Master Financing Contract, and to pay any Additional Costs in connection therewith. 

 The Local Agency shall provide the State Treasurer with not less than 60 days’ 
prior written notice of its intention to prepay any of its Agency Installment Payments, which notice 
shall specify the date of the date of such prepayment, and the amount and the Agency Installment 
Payment Dates of the Agency Installment Payments to be prepaid.  The State Treasurer shall notify 
the Local Agency within 15 Business Days after receipt of such notice from the Local Agency as 
to the amount required to be paid in connection with such prepayment or provision for payment of 
the corresponding Installment Payments, including any Additional Costs in connection therewith.  
The determination by the State Treasurer of the amount to be paid by the Local Agency shall be 
binding and conclusive against such Local Agency, absent manifest error.  

Section 4.2 Revision of Agency Installment Payments upon Optional Prepayment.  The 
Agency Principal Component and Agency Interest Component of the Agency Installment Payment 
due on each Agency Installment Payment Date on and after the date of any prepayment pursuant 
to Section 4.1, as set forth in Exhibit D, shall be reduced by the State Treasurer to reflect such 
prepayment, in such amounts and on such Agency Installment Payment Dates as the Local Agency 
shall elect in its written notice to the State Treasurer, pursuant to Section 4.1(b). 

Section 4.3 Discharge of Local Agency Financing Contract.  All right, title and interest 
of the State and all obligations of the Local Agency under this Local Agency Financing Contract 
shall terminate and be completely discharged and satisfied (except for the right of the State and 
the Corporation and the obligation of the Local Agency to have the money and Government 
Obligations set aside applied pursuant to Section 4.3(b) to make the remaining Agency Installment 
Payments) when either: 

 all Agency Installment Payments and all Additional Costs and other amounts due 
hereunder have been paid in accordance herewith; or 

 (i) the Local Agency shall have delivered a written notice to the State Treasurer of 
its intention to prepay all of the Agency Installment Payments remaining unpaid; (ii) the Local 
Agency shall have caused to be deposited with the State Treasurer (A) money and/or Government 
Obligations in accordance with Section 4.1; and (B) an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that such 



 
 

-9- 

actions are permitted under this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Master Financing Contract 
and the Trust Agreement and will not cause interest evidenced and represented by the Certificates 
to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code; and (iii) for so 
long as any Agency Installment Payments remain unpaid, provision shall have been made 
satisfactory to the Corporation for payment of all Additional Costs. 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties of the Local Agency.  The Local Agency 
represents and warrants as follows: 

 The Local Agency is an “other agency” within the meaning of the Act, duly 
organized and validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State. 

 The Local Agency is authorized under the laws of the State and its charter or other 
constituent document, if any, to enter into and perform its obligations under this Local Agency 
Financing Contract. 

 Neither the execution and delivery by the Local Agency of this Local Agency 
Financing Contract, nor the observance and performance of its terms and conditions, nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by it, conflicts with or constitutes a breach of or 
default under any agreement or instrument to which the Local Agency is a party or by which the 
Local Agency or its property is bound, or results in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge 
or encumbrance whatsoever upon the Property, except as expressly provided in this Local Agency 
Financing Contract and the Master Financing Contract. 

 The Local Agency has duly authorized, executed and delivered this Local Agency 
Financing Contract. 

 This Local Agency Financing Contract constitutes valid and binding general 
obligation indebtedness of the Local Agency, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, 
except as such enforceability may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally, to the application of 
equitable principles, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

 The Property to be financed and acquired pursuant to this Local Agency Financing 
Contract is essential to the Local Agency’s ability to carry out its governmental functions and 
responsibilities, and the Local Agency expects to make immediate and continuing use of the 
Property during the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract. 

 The useful life of the Property is equal to or exceeds the term of this Local Agency 
Financing Contract. 

 The obligations of the Local Agency under this Local Agency Financing Contract, 
together with all other outstanding indebtedness of the Local Agency, do not exceed any statutory 
or constitutional debt limit applicable to the Local Agency. 



 
 

-10- 

 The Local Agency makes no representation or warranty regarding the perfection of 
any security interest in the Property, the Master Financing Contract or this Local Agency Financing 
Contract for the benefit of the Corporation. 

Section 5.2 Covenants and Agreements of the Local Agency.  The Local Agency 
covenants and agrees as follows: 

 Preservation of Existence.  The Local Agency will do or cause to be done all things 
necessary to preserve its existence as an “other agency” within the meaning of the Act. 

 Budget.  The Local Agency shall take such action as may be necessary to include 
all the Agency Installment Payments and Additional Costs due hereunder in its annual budget and 
to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such Agency Installment Payments and 
Additional Costs. 

 Levy of Taxes.  If and to the extent authorized by law, the Local Agency covenants 
that it will levy taxes in such amounts and at such times as shall be necessary, within and as a part 
of the tax levy, if any, permitted to be made by the Local Agency without a vote of its electors, to 
provide funds, together with other legally available money, sufficient to make the Agency 
Installment Payments and the other payments required under this Local Agency Financing 
Contract. 

 Notice of Nonpayment.  The Local Agency shall give written notice to the State 
Treasurer and the Corporation prior to any Agency Installment Payment Date if the Local Agency 
knows prior to such date that it will be unable to make all or any portion of the Agency Installment 
Payment due on such date. 

 Tax Exemption.  The Local Agency shall not make any use of the proceeds of this 
Local Agency Financing Contract or the Certificates or of any other amounts, regardless of the 
source, or of any property, and shall not take or refrain from taking any action, that would cause 
the Master Financing Contract or the Certificates to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of 
Section 148 of the Code.  The Local Agency shall not use or permit the use of the Property or any 
part thereof by any Person other than a “governmental unit” as that term is defined in Section 141 
of the Code, in such manner or to such extent as would result in the loss of the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes of the Interest Component of the Installment 
Payments under Section 103 of the Code.  The Local Agency shall not make any use of the 
proceeds of this Local Agency Financing Contract or the Certificates or of any other amounts, and 
shall not take or refrain from taking any action, that would cause the Master Financing Contract 
or the Certificates to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code, 
or “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code, or “hedge bonds” within 
the meaning of Section 149 of the Code.  To that end, for so long as any Agency Installment 
Payments remain unpaid, the Local Agency, with respect to such proceeds and other amounts, will 
comply with all requirements under such Sections and all applicable regulations of the United 
States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder.  The Local Agency will at all times do 
and perform all acts and things permitted by law which are necessary or desirable in order to assure 
that the Interest Components of the Installment Payments will not be included in gross income of 
the Owners of the Certificates for federal income tax purposes under the Code, and will take no 



 
 

-11- 

action that would result in such interest being so included.  The Local Agency shall comply with 
the applicable provisions of the Tax Certificate. 

 No Liens; Sale or Disposal; or Assignment.  The Local Agency shall not create, 
incur or assume any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to 
the Property, except the rights of the Corporation as provided herein and in the Master Financing 
Contract.  The Local Agency shall promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be 
necessary to duly discharge any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim if the 
same shall arise at any time.  The Local Agency shall not grant, sell, transfer, assign, pledge, 
convey or otherwise dispose of any of the Property or any interest therein during the term of this 
Local Agency Financing Contract, and any such attempted grant, sale, transfer, assignment, 
pledge, conveyance or disposal shall be void.  The Local Agency may not grant, sell, assign, 
transfer, convey, pledge, hypothecate or grant any security interest in any of its right, title or 
interest in, to or under this Local Agency Financing Contract.  Any attempted grant, sale, 
assignment, conveyance, pledge, hypothecation or security interest shall be void. 

 Performance.  The Local Agency shall punctually pay the Agency Installment 
Payments and any Additional Costs in conformity with the terms and provisions hereof, and will 
faithfully observe and perform all the covenants, terms and other obligations contained herein 
required to be observed and performed by the Local Agency.  The Local Agency will not suffer or 
permit any default to occur hereunder, or do or permit anything to be done, or omit or refrain from 
doing anything, in any case where any such act done or permitted, or any such omission or 
refraining from doing anything, would or might be grounds for termination of this Local Agency 
Financing Contract.  The Local Agency will not terminate this Local Agency Financing Contract 
for any cause, including but not limited to any acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of 
consideration, destruction of or damage to the Property, commercial frustration of purpose, any 
change in the tax or other laws of the United States of America or of the State or any political 
subdivision of the State, or any failure by the State or the Corporation to observe or perform any 
covenant, agreement, term, condition or other obligation contained herein or in the Master 
Financing Contract required to be observed and performed by it, whether express or implied, or 
the bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or reorganization of the Corporation. 

 Further Assurances.  The Local Agency will preserve and protect the rights of the 
State hereunder, and will warrant and defend such rights against all claims and demands of all 
Persons.  The Local Agency will promptly execute, make, deliver, file and record any and all 
further assurances, instruments and agreements, and do or cause to be done such other and further 
things, as may be necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance 
hereof and for the better assuring and confirming to the State the rights and benefits provided to it 
hereunder. 

 Use of Property.  During the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract, the 
Local Agency will use the Property for the purposes of performing one or more of its essential 
governmental functions or responsibilities.  The Local Agency will not permit the Property to be 
used or operated other than by authorized employees, agents and contractors of the Local Agency. 

 Financial Statements.  The Local Agency shall prepare annual financial statements 
and obtain audits thereof as required by law.  Upon the Written Request of the State Treasurer, the 



 
 

-12- 

Local Agency shall provide the State Treasurer with a copy of its most recent audited and 
unaudited financial statements. 

 Use; Repairs.  For so long as the Local Agency is in possession of the Property, the 
Local Agency shall be solely responsible for the maintenance and repair, both ordinary and 
extraordinary, of the Property.  The Local Agency will (i) keep and maintain the Property in good 
repair, working order and condition, and protect the same from deterioration other than normal 
wear and tear; (ii) cause the Property to be used within its normal capacity, in the manner 
contemplated by the manufacturer’s specification, and in compliance with the requirements of 
applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, the requirements of any warranties applicable thereto, 
and the requirements of any insurance or self-insurance program required under Section 5.2(p); 
(iii) cause the Property to be used and operated by or under the direction of competent persons 
only, and obtain all registrations, permits and licenses, if any, required by law for the operation of 
the Property; and (iv) will pay all costs, claims, damages, fees and charges arising out of its 
possession, use or maintenance of the Property.  The Local Agency, at its expense, will furnish all 
parts, mechanisms and devices required to operate and maintain the Property. 

 Alterations.  The Local Agency will not make any alterations, additions or 
improvements to the Property without the prior written consent of the State Treasurer unless such 
alterations, additions or improvements (i) maintain or increase the value of the Property; or 
(ii) may be readily removed without damage to the Property.  All such alterations, additions or 
improvements shall be deemed to be a part of the Property and shall be subject to the terms and 
provisions of this Local Agency Financing Contract. 

 Location; Inspection.  The Property will be located within the State.  The 
Corporation will be entitled to inspect the Property during regular business hours upon at least one 
Business Day’s prior notice.  The Local Agency acknowledges, and consents and agrees to, the 
right of the Corporation to so inspect the Property. 

 Impositions and Charges.  If during the term of this Local Agency Financing 
Contract, any Imposition is imposed or incurred in connection with the sale and purchase of the 
Property by the Corporation to the State, or by the State to the Local Agency, or the ownership, 
operation, possession or use of the Property by the Corporation, the State or the Local Agency, or 
the payment of the Agency Installment Payments by the Local Agency, or the payment of the 
Installment Payments payable therefrom by the State, or any fines, penalties or interest imposed 
on or with respect to any of the foregoing, the Local Agency shall pay all such Impositions and 
charges when due.  The Local Agency at its own expense may contest any such Impositions and 
charges until it obtains a final administrative or judicial determination with respect thereto, unless 
the Property is encumbered by any levy, lien or any other type of encumbrance because of the 
Local Agency’s failure to pay such Impositions or charges.  If the State or the Corporation pays 
any such Impositions or charges for which the Local Agency is responsible or liable hereunder, 
the Local Agency shall reimburse the State or the Corporation, as applicable, therefor as Additional 
Costs hereunder.  The Local Agency shall hold harmless the State and the Corporation from and 
against all such Impositions and charges during the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract. 

 Risk of Loss; Damage; Destruction; Condemnation.  The Local Agency assumes 
all risk of loss of or damage to the Property from any cause whatsoever, and the obligation of the 



 
 

-13- 

Local Agency to pay the Agency Installment Payments or to perform any other obligation under 
this Local Agency Financing Contract shall in no way be released, discharged or otherwise affected 
for any reason, including without limitation (i) any defect in the condition, quality or fitness for 
use of, or title to, any portion of the Property, or (ii) any damage to, or abandonment, destruction, 
requisition, condemnation or taking of any portion of the Property.  In the event of damage to any 
item of the Property, the Local Agency will immediately place the same in good repair, working 
order and condition as required by Section 5.2(k) hereof.  If the Local Agency determines that any 
item of Property is lost, stolen, destroyed or damaged beyond repair, the Local Agency will prepay 
all of its obligations for Agency Installment Payments and terminate its obligations hereunder in 
accordance with Section 4.3(b) hereof. 

 Insurance. 

(i) The Local Agency shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, in full force 
and effect, comprehensive general liability insurance with respect to the Property in such 
amounts as may be reasonably determined by the Local Agency from time to time but in 
any event not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, or such greater amount as the State 
Treasurer may reasonably require from time to time.  Such insurance may be carried under 
a blanket policy with umbrella coverage.  Such insurance shall cover any and all liability 
of the Local Agency and its officials, officers, employees and volunteers.  Such insurance 
shall include (A) coverage for any accident resulting in personal injury to or death of any 
person and consequential damages arising therefrom; and (B) comprehensive property 
damage insurance. 

(ii) The Local Agency shall maintain or cause to be maintained in full force and 
effect fire and extended coverage insurance with respect to the Property in such amounts 
and covering such risks as the Local Agency may reasonably determine from time to time 
but in any event not less than the aggregate amount of the Agency Principal Components 
of Agency Installment Payments due hereunder which remain unpaid.  Such insurance may 
be carried under a policy or policies covering other property of the Local Agency.  In the 
alternative, the Local Agency may assume financial responsibility for any physical damage 
to and/or loss of the Property; provided, however, that if the Local Agency elects this 
option, the Local Agency hereby covenants and agrees that it will promptly repair or 
replace the Property promptly upon any loss or damage thereto. 

(iii) The insurance required under paragraphs (i) and (ii) above:  (A) shall be 
provided by a financially responsible insurance company authorized to do business in the 
State; (B) except for the insurance required under paragraph (ii) above and as provided in 
paragraph (iv) below, shall name the State and the Trustee as additional insureds 
thereunder; (C) shall provide that the same may not be canceled or given notice of non-
renewal, nor shall the terms of conditions thereof be altered, amended or modified, without 
at least 45 days’ prior written notice being given by the insurer to the State Treasurer; and 
(D) may be provided in whole or in part through a funded program of self-insurance 
reviewed at least annually by an insurance actuary. 

 



 
 

-14- 

(iv) In the event that the Local Agency provides the insurance required under 
paragraph (i) above through its membership in a local government risk pool established 
under chapter 48.62 RCW, the State and the Trustee shall not be required to be named as 
additional insureds under such insurance; provided, however, that in such event the Local 
Agency agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold the State and the Trustee harmless from any 
claims, judgments, damages, expenses and losses covered by such insurance. 

(v) A certificate of insurance with respect to the required coverages shall be 
provided by the Local Agency to the State Treasurer annually on or prior to December 1 
with respect to any required insurance maintained pursuant hereto. 

(vi) The Local Agency will pay or cause to be paid when due the premiums for 
all insurance policies required by this Section 5.2(p). 

ARTICLE VI 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

Section 6.1 Agency Event of Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an “Agency 
Event of Default” hereunder: 

 Failure by the Local Agency to pay or cause to be paid any Agency Installment 
Payment required to be paid hereunder within 10 Business Days of the respective Agency 
Installment Payment Date; 

 Failure by the Local Agency to observe or perform any covenant, agreement, term 
or condition on its part to be observed or performed hereunder, other than as set forth in 
paragraph (a) above, for a period of 30 days after written notice from the State Treasurer or the 
Trustee to the Local Agency specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied; provided, 
however, that such period shall be extended for not more than 60 days if such failure cannot be 
corrected within such period, and the corrective action is commenced by the Local Agency within 
such period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; 

 If any statement, representation, or warranty made by the Local Agency in this 
Local Agency Financing Contract or in any writing delivered by the Local Agency pursuant hereto 
or in connection herewith is false, misleading, or erroneous in any material respect; and 

 Inability of the Local Agency to generally pay its debts as such debts become due, 
or admission by the Local Agency in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally or the making 
by the Local Agency of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the institution of any 
proceeding by or against the Local Agency seeking to adjudicate it as bankrupt or insolvent, or 
seeking liquidation, winding-up, reorganization, reimbursement, adjustment, protection, relief or 
composition of it or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization 
or relief of debtors, or seeking the entry of an order for relief or for appointment of a receiver, 
trustee, or other similar officer of it or any substantial part of its property, or the taking of any 
action by the Local Agency to authorize any of the actions set forth above in this Section 6.1(d). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 6.1, if by reason of force majeure 
the Local Agency is unable in whole or in part to carry out the covenants, agreements, terms and 



 
 

-15- 

conditions on its part contained in this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local Agency shall 
not be deemed in default during the continuance of such inability.  The term “force majeure” means 
the following:  acts of God; strikes; lockouts or other industrial disturbances or disputes; acts of 
public enemies; orders or restraints of any kind of the government of the United States of America 
or any of its departments, agencies or officials, or of its civil or military authorities; orders or 
restraints of the State or of any of its departments, agencies or officials or civil or military 
authorities of the State; wars, rebellions, insurrections; riots; civil disorders; blockade or embargo; 
landslides; earthquakes; fires; storms; droughts; floods; explosions; or any other cause or event not 
within the control of the Local Agency. 

The State, with the prior written consent of the Corporation, may, at its election, waive any 
default or Agency Event of Default and its consequences hereunder and annul any notice thereof 
by written notice to the Local Agency to such effect, and thereupon the respective rights of the 
Parties hereunder shall be as they would have been if such default or Agency Event of Default had 
not occurred. 

Section 6.2 Rights of State Upon Agency Event of Default.  Whenever an Agency Event 
of Default hereunder shall have occurred and be continuing, the State shall have the following 
rights and may exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 

 By written notice to the Local Agency, require that the Local Agency promptly 
return possession and use of the Property to the State at any location specified in the United States 
(at the cost and expense of the Local Agency) in good repair, working order and condition, ordinary 
wear and tear excepted; 

 Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the Agency Installment Payments then due and thereafter becoming due, or to enforce the 
observance or performance of any covenant, agreement or obligation of the Local Agency under 
this Local Agency Financing Contract; 

 Exercise any other rights or remedies it may have hereunder or under applicable 
law; and 

 Decline to execute any future financing contract on behalf of the Local Agency 
under the Act. 

Section 6.3 No Remedy Exclusive; Non-Waiver.  No remedy conferred upon or 
reserved to the State hereunder or under applicable law is intended to or shall be exclusive, and 
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under 
this Local Agency Financing Contract or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity.  No delay 
or omission to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon a default or an Agency Event of Default 
hereunder shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of such default 
or Agency Event of Default, but any such right or remedy may be exercised from time to time and 
as often as may be deemed necessary or expedient.  In order to exercise any remedy reserved to 
the State hereunder, it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be 
required hereunder.  A waiver by the State of any default or Agency Event of Default hereunder 
shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default or Agency Event of Default hereunder, and 



 
 

-16- 

shall not affect or impair the rights or remedies of the State in connection with any such subsequent 
default or Agency Event of Default. 

ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 7.1 Indemnification of State and the Corporation.  To the extent permitted by 
law, the Local Agency hereby releases the State and the Corporation from, agrees that the State 
and the Corporation shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify and hold the State and the 
Corporation and their respective directors, officers, officials, employees, and agents harmless 
from, any liability for any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person that 
may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever arising out of the ownership or operation of the 
Property or the acquisition, financing or refinancing thereof.  The Local Agency agrees to 
indemnify and hold the State and the Corporation and their respective directors, officers, officials, 
employees, and agents harmless from any losses, costs, charges, expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees), judgments and liabilities incurred by it or them, as the case may be, in connection 
with any action, suit or proceeding instituted or threatened in connection with the transactions 
contemplated by this Local Agency Financing Contract or the exercise of rights or the performance 
of duties of the State or the Corporation under this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Master 
Financing Contract or the other Series Agreements to which each of them is a Party, except to the 
extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such indemnified party.  The 
indemnification provided in this Section 7.1 shall survive the final payment of the Agency 
Installment Payments and the termination of this Local Agency Financing Contract for any reason. 

Section 7.2 Third Party Beneficiaries.  The Corporation and the Trustee, as assignee of 
the Corporation, shall be third party beneficiaries of this Local Agency Financing Contract. 

 



Transaction No. 1257-9-1 
 

-17- 

Section 7.3 Notices to Agency.  The notice address for the Local Agency shall be as set 
forth in the Notice of Intent. 

 

STATE: STATE OF WASHINGTON OFFICE OF THE 
STATE TREASURER 
 
 
By 

Treasurer Representative 
 

LOCAL AGENCY: Pierce County Fire Protection District 5, Pierce 
County, Washington 
 
 
 
By 

Authorized Agency Representative 
 
 
By 

Authorized Agency Representative 
 
 
By 

Authorized Agency Representative 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT 
 
 
 

[attached] 
 



1 

Notice of Intent  
State of Washington LOCAL PROGRAM 

Local Agency Information 
Legal Name:     
County:     MCAG No.: 
Address:     Zip:  
Contact Person: Title: 
Phone:     Fax:  
E-mail:     

Property (Real Estate or Equipment) 
Property description (include quantity, if applicable):      
Purpose of property (Please be specific and include dept. of use): 

Finance term: 
Useful life:  

Desired financing date:   
  ) 
  ) 

Total Project/Property Cost $ 
Local Funds $ (    

Grants/Other $  (  

LOCAL Financing Request: $ 

If real estate, the Real Estate Worksheet:    Is attached   Will be provided by (date):  

If equipment, expected property delivery date:

 Reimbursement to Local Agency. If expenditures are made prior to the COP closing date, a Reimbursement 
Resolution will be required with your financing documents. To comply with IRS requirements, expenditures 
made more than 60 days prior to the date of the resolution cannot be reimbursed. 

Direct payment to vendor. Confirm the vendor is registered in the Statewide Vendor System at 
https://ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services or call 360.407.8180. 

Security Pledge 
 Voted general obligation of local government   Non-voted general obligation of local government 

Other Information 
If any of the following apply, please provide a complete discussion on a separate page: 

Yes  No    Is the local agency a party to significant litigation? 

  Yes    No    Has the agency received a bond rating in the last two years?        If yes, bond rating(s): 
      (attach rating agency letter) 

The Local Agency reasonably expects to be reimbursed for original expenditures made to acquire the personal/real property from sale 
proceeds of certificates of participation in a Personal/Real Property Financing Lease with the State Treasurer in the maximum amount 
expected to be financed as identified above. The Local Agency reasonably expects that the personal/real property will be used for its 
governmental purpose and not by any nongovernmental person for private business use. 

Date: Signature:* 

Printed Name: Title: 

Expected date of closing or executed Construction Contract:

Select how the property purchase price will be paid: 

* To use electronic signatures, please email the completed form to OST

08/09/2023

https://ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services


1 

Credit Application 
State of Washington LOCAL PROGRAM 

Please provide the following information with the agency’s Notice of Intent to finance through the LOCAL PROGRAM. 

General 
Local Agency Name:     
Located in the                        community of: 
Population served:     

Please provide a brief background on the agency: when it was formed, recent changes in service area or tax base 
related to annexations or mergers.  

Are you aware of any proposed changes to the tax base of the agency such as plans to annex/merge/dissolve 
portions of a district/county/city)?  If so, how would this affect the agency’s size and operations? 

Provide the number of agency employees in each of the past three years. Do unions represent employees or 
bargaining groups? If yes, when do the associated contracts expire? Are labor relations considered satisfactory?   

Discuss any major changes to significant employers or taxpayers in the area. Are you aware of pending closures 
or changes in employment levels?  

Special Purpose Districts only: List facilities and major equipment operated by the district. 

Litigation

Please accept or modify as appropriate, the following: 

There [is/is not] now pending or, to the best of knowledge, threatened, any litigation restraining or enjoining the 
execution of the Local Agency Financing Agreement or the levy and collection of taxes to pay the payments 
thereunder.  [The [city/county/distric] is party to routine legal proceedings and claims, and the collective impact 
of these legal proceedings and claims [is/is not] likely to have a material impact on revenues of the entity.



2 

Assessed Valuation  
Please complete the table below on assessed value, noting the source materials.  Explain any unique or unusual 
valuation numbers (e.g. revaluation year). 

Year of tax collection 
(include last 5 years) 

Total assessed value for 
regular levy 

Reduced assessed value 
for excess or bond levy 

Current year 

Tax Levy and Rate 
Provide the levy rate per $1,000 assessed to taxpayers for the last five years, and the dollar amount of regular 
levy. 

Year of 
Tax 

Collection 

Regular Levy 
Rate per 
$1,000 

Regular Levy 
Total $$ 
Levied 

Other Levy 
Rate per 
$1,000 

Bond Levy 
Rate per $1,000 

Levy Lid Lift 
Included? 

(Y/N) 
If Y, provide amount 

Current Year 

Does the agency currently have authority to impose any voter-approved levy lid lifts in the future?  If so, please 
describe the term(s) and authorized amount(s) of such lid lifts.   

Has the levy rate been reduced in recent years because of other taxing district levies? 

Are you aware of any potential or impending constraints or reductions associated with the agency’s levy rates?    
If yes, please explain.  



3 

Financial Operations 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Fund Balance Report 
Basis of accounting:        Cash        Accrual  

Please attach copies of the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Fund Balance Report for the General or 
Operating Fund, for the past five years. Clearly indicate whether each year has been audited. If financial 
statements are not available for the most recent year, please provide preliminary numbers. Please provide details 
to explain any unusual activity such as one-time expenditures or revenues.  

 The past 5 years of financial reports are attached   

Budget – General/Operating Fund (2 years)  
Please attach the budget summary for the General or Operating fund for the current and past year. Be sure it 
includes summary information on revenues and expenditures – do not send the entire budget. 

 Budget reports are attached   

Please discuss any ending fund balance policies.  Is there an expectation that the ending fund balance will be 
drawn down to a pre-determined level in the future?  If so, why and when? 

Service Contracts 
Briefly describe any service contracts (terms, length, dollar value, etc), including contracts with cities, counties 
or special purpose districts within the applicant’s boundaries, if any.  If such contracts constitute more than 10% 
of your agencies annual operating revenues or expenditures, please provide a history of the specific 
revenue/expenditures associated with the contract(s) and the remaining term of the contract(s).  An example of 
such a contract might include a fire district that receives revenue from another entity for purposes of fire 
protection services outside of that fire district’s natural boundaries. 

Debt 
Outstanding Long-term Debt 
Provide the following information on all outstanding debt.  Include general obligation debt and other types of 
debt that are payable from the agency’s general or operating fund, as well as any outstanding state loans.  
Use an additional page or attachment if necessary.  

Debt No. 1 Debt No. 2 Debt No. 3 
Description of debt 
First payment date 
Last payment date 
Voted or non-voted pledge 
Amount originally borrowed 
Amount currently outstanding 
Annual payments due 
Fund responsible for repayment 



4 

Short-term Obligations  

Provide information on any short-term obligations including interfund loans or loans from the County Treasurer, 
noting the amount of the loan, the purpose, the repayment schedule and the fund source for repayment.  

Additional Financing Plans  
Discuss additional financing plans that are in process or anticipated over the next 18 to 24 months. 

Expected payment source for COP lease payments 
Does the agency anticipate making the COP lease payments from a source other than the agency’s general or 
operating fund?  If so please describe this alternative source of funds, provide a 5-year history and any other 
claims on this source of funds. 

Reserves 
Does the agency maintain any financial reserves outside of its general or operating fund?  Please describe these 
reserves, provide a 5-year history and any expected expenditure of these reserve funds in the near future. 

Provide any additional information that would be helpful for the review of the LOCAL PROGRAM credit 
application. 

The information provided above is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I am not aware of any 
additional information that would affect the Office of the State Treasurer’s review of the agency. 

Signature: Date: 

Printed Name: Title: 

Forward this application to the LOCAL Program 
LOCALPROGRAM@tre.wa.gov

Office of the State Treasurer, Legislative Building, PO Box 
40200, Olympia, WA 98504-0200

(360) 902-9022



EXHIBIT B 

PERSONAL PROPERTY CERTIFICATE 

[to be attached upon availability] 



EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATE DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES 

[attached] 



1 

Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives 

I, Joe Urvina, Chairman of the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 (the “Local 
Agency”), hereby certify that, as of the date hereof, pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-09, the following individuals are each an 
“Authorized Agency Representative,” as indicated by the title appended to each signature, that the following individuals are 
duly authorized to execute and deliver the Local Agency Financing Agreement to which this Certificate is attached as Exhibit 
C, and all documentation in connection therewith, including but not limited to the Personal Property Certificate(s) attached 
thereto as Exhibit B, that the signatures set forth below are the true and genuine signatures of said Authorized Agency 
Representatives and that pursuant to such resolution/ordinance, two (2) of the three (3) following signature(s) are required on 
each of the aforementioned documents in order to consider such documents executed on behalf of the Local Agency: 

_________________________, Dennis Doan, Fire Chief 
(signature) 

_________________________, Perry Oldenburg, Assistant Fire Chief 
(signature) 

_________________________, Krystal Hackmeister, Finance Director 
(signature) 

Dated this __________ day of __________, 2023. 

Joe Urvina, Board Chair 
Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this __ __ day of _ _, 20 . 

By: _______________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington, residing at: 
___________________________ 
Printed Name: _______________ 
My Commission Expires: _______ 



EXHIBIT D 

SCHEDULE OF AGENCY INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS 

[to be attached upon availability] 



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-10 
August 22, 2023 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection 
District No. 5 hereby adopts the following resolution regarding reimbursement of obligations 
under LOCAL loan. 
 
 Section 1.  The Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 
5 d/b/a Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One (the “Local Agency”) reasonably expects to reimburse the 
expenditures described herein with the proceeds of a financing contract to be entered into by the 
Local Agency (the “Reimbursement Obligation”). 
 
 Section 2.  The expenditures with respect to which the Local Agency reasonably expects 
to be reimbursed from the proceeds of Reimbursement Obligations are for the purchase of the 
self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) and emergency medical equipment to include 
monitor/defibrillators, AutoPulse® Resuscitation, and automated external defibrillator (AEDs). 
 
 Section 3.  The expenditures with respect to which the Local Agency reasonably expects 
to be reimbursed from the proceeds of Reimbursement Obligations will be made from Pierce 
County Fire District No. 5’s General Expense Fund which is to provide for the acquisition of 
capital assets. 
 
 Section 4.  The maximum principal amount of Reimbursement Obligations expected to 
be issued for the property described in Section 2 is $2,145,000. 
 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5, this 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

      DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 

 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

Attest: 
      _________________________________ 
_________________________________ Commissioner 
District Secretary 


	2023-08-22 AGENDA
	Minutes Commissioner Mtg 08-08-2023
	Voucher Totals - 08.08.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 08.08.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 08.08.23
	Voucher Totals - 08.15.23
	Voucher Approvals - 08.15.23
	Voucher Totals - 08072023 Payroll
	Voucher Approvals - 08072023 Payroll
	ADPF7B.tmp
	Article I  DEFINITIONS; CONSTRUCTION; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS; SUPPLEMENTS
	Section 1.1 Definitions, Construction, Miscellaneous Provisions, Supplements.  Appendix 1 is incorporated as part of this Local Agency Financing Contract by this reference.  Appendix 1 provides (i) definitions for the capitalized terms used and not ot...
	Section 1.2 Notice of Intent, Personal Property Certificate and Certificate Designating Authorized Local Agency Representative.  Exhibits A, B, C and D to this Local Agency Financing Contract are incorporated as part of this Local Agency Financing Con...
	Section 1.3 Performance by Representatives.  Any authority granted or duty imposed upon the State hereunder may be undertaken and performed by the State Treasurer or the Treasurer Representative.  Any authority or duty imposed upon the Local Agency he...
	Section 1.4 Installment Sale and Purchase of Property.  The State agrees to sell to the Local Agency, and the Local Agency agrees to purchase from the State, all of the State’s right, title and interest in and to the Property and all proceeds and prof...
	Section 1.5 Agency Installment Payments.  In consideration of the sale of the Property and the covenants and agreements of the State in this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local Agency promises to pay to the State the following amounts at the fo...
	Section 1.6 Term.  The term of this Local Agency Financing Contract shall commence on the Dated Date and shall terminate on the date on which all amounts due hereunder shall have been paid or the payment thereof duly provided for pursuant to Section 4...

	Article II  SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY
	Section 2.1 Local Agency Financing Contract Consolidated with Master Financing Contract.  The Local Agency acknowledges that the State Treasurer, acting on behalf of the State Finance Committee, has consolidated this Local Agency Financing Contract wi...
	Section 2.2 Appointment as Agent; Acquisition of Property; Revision and Substitution of Property.
	(a) Appointment as Agent.  The Local Agency accepts its appointment in the Master Financing Contract as agent of the Corporation in connection with the acquisition of the Property, and acknowledges that such appointment is irrevocable and shall not be...
	(b) Acquisition of Property.  The Local Agency agrees that (i) it has caused or will cause the Property to be acquired, as agent for the Corporation, with all reasonable dispatch; (ii) it will negotiate or call for bids for the purchase of the Propert...
	(c) Revision and Substitution of Property.  The Local Agency, with the prior written consent of the State Treasurer, may revise any item of Property to be financed or refinanced and acquired pursuant hereto, or the description thereof; provided, that ...
	(d) Payment for Property if Acquisition Fund Not Sufficient.  If money in the Acquisition Fund allocable to the Local Agency is not sufficient to pay the Acquisition Costs of the Property in full, the Local Agency shall cause the Acquisition Costs of ...

	Section 2.3 Title to the Property.  All right, title and interest in and to the Property shall transfer to and be vested in the Local Agency from the State without any further action by the Local Agency or the State immediately upon the acquisition th...
	Section 2.4 Security Interests.
	(a) State Security Interest.  In order to secure the payment and performance by the State of its obligations under the Master Financing Contract, the State has granted to the Corporation a lien on and security interest in all right, title and interest...
	(b) Local Agency Security Interest.  In order to secure the payment and performance by the Local Agency of its obligations under this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local Agency grants to the Corporation a lien on and security interest in all ri...

	Section 2.5 Disclaimer of Warranties.  The Local Agency acknowledges and agrees that the Property is of a nature, size, design and capacity selected by the Local Agency pursuant to its own specifications, and not by the State or the Corporation, and t...
	The Corporation makes no warranty or representation, either express or implied, and assumes no responsibility, liability or obligation, as to the value, design, condition, merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or fitness for use of the P...

	Article III  AGENCY INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS; CONDITIONAL PAYMENT BY STATE; FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATION
	Section 3.1 Agency Installment Payments.  Each Agency Installment Payment shall consist of an Agency Principal Component and/or an Agency Interest Component as set forth in Exhibit D to this Local Agency Financing Contract.  Interest shall accrue and ...
	Section 3.2 Sources of Payment of Agency Installment Payments.
	(a) Local Agency Financing Contract.  The Local Agency acknowledges and agrees that the State is acquiring the Property from the Corporation for and on behalf of the Local Agency.  Concurrently with the execution hereof, the State shall execute and de...
	(b) Intercept of Local Agency Share of State Revenues.  In the event that the Local Agency fails to make any payment due under this Local Agency Financing Contract, pursuant to RCW 39.94.030(1), the State Treasurer shall withhold an amount sufficient ...
	(c) Conditional Payment of Local Agency Installment Payments.  Upon the failure of the Local Agency to make any Agency Installment Payment at such time and in such amount as required pursuant to this Local Agency Financing Contract, the State shall, t...
	(d) Payments by Local Agency Treasurer.  The treasurer of the Local Agency shall establish and/or maintain a special fund in the “bonds payable” category of accounts of the Local Agency for the purposes of paying the Local Agency’s Agency Installment ...

	Section 3.3 No Set-Off.  The obligation of the Local Agency to make Agency Installment Payments from the sources set forth herein and to perform its other obligations hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional.  The Local Agency shall make Agency I...
	Section 3.4 Assignments by the Corporation.  The Local Agency acknowledges and agrees that, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Corporation will unconditionally assign to the Trustee pursuant to th...

	Article IV  OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT OF AGENCY INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS
	Section 4.1 Optional Prepayment.
	(a) The Local Agency may, at its option and upon approval of the State Treasurer, prepay its Agency Installment Payments then unpaid, in whole or in part on any date, by causing to be deposited with the State Treasurer money and/or Government Obligati...
	(b) The Local Agency shall provide the State Treasurer with not less than 60 days’ prior written notice of its intention to prepay any of its Agency Installment Payments, which notice shall specify the date of the date of such prepayment, and the amou...

	Section 4.2 Revision of Agency Installment Payments upon Optional Prepayment.  The Agency Principal Component and Agency Interest Component of the Agency Installment Payment due on each Agency Installment Payment Date on and after the date of any prep...
	Section 4.3 Discharge of Local Agency Financing Contract.  All right, title and interest of the State and all obligations of the Local Agency under this Local Agency Financing Contract shall terminate and be completely discharged and satisfied (except...
	(a) all Agency Installment Payments and all Additional Costs and other amounts due hereunder have been paid in accordance herewith; or
	(b) (i) the Local Agency shall have delivered a written notice to the State Treasurer of its intention to prepay all of the Agency Installment Payments remaining unpaid; (ii) the Local Agency shall have caused to be deposited with the State Treasurer ...


	Article V  REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS
	Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties of the Local Agency.  The Local Agency represents and warrants as follows:
	(a) The Local Agency is an “other agency” within the meaning of the Act, duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State.
	(b) The Local Agency is authorized under the laws of the State and its charter or other constituent document, if any, to enter into and perform its obligations under this Local Agency Financing Contract.
	(c) Neither the execution and delivery by the Local Agency of this Local Agency Financing Contract, nor the observance and performance of its terms and conditions, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated by it, conflicts with or constitu...
	(d) The Local Agency has duly authorized, executed and delivered this Local Agency Financing Contract.
	(e) This Local Agency Financing Contract constitutes valid and binding general obligation indebtedness of the Local Agency, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, r...
	(f) The Property to be financed and acquired pursuant to this Local Agency Financing Contract is essential to the Local Agency’s ability to carry out its governmental functions and responsibilities, and the Local Agency expects to make immediate and c...
	(g) The useful life of the Property is equal to or exceeds the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract.
	(h) The obligations of the Local Agency under this Local Agency Financing Contract, together with all other outstanding indebtedness of the Local Agency, do not exceed any statutory or constitutional debt limit applicable to the Local Agency.
	(i) The Local Agency makes no representation or warranty regarding the perfection of any security interest in the Property, the Master Financing Contract or this Local Agency Financing Contract for the benefit of the Corporation.

	Section 5.2 Covenants and Agreements of the Local Agency.  The Local Agency covenants and agrees as follows:
	(a) Preservation of Existence.  The Local Agency will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve its existence as an “other agency” within the meaning of the Act.
	(b) Budget.  The Local Agency shall take such action as may be necessary to include all the Agency Installment Payments and Additional Costs due hereunder in its annual budget and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such Agency Install...
	(c) Levy of Taxes.  If and to the extent authorized by law, the Local Agency covenants that it will levy taxes in such amounts and at such times as shall be necessary, within and as a part of the tax levy, if any, permitted to be made by the Local Age...
	(d) Notice of Nonpayment.  The Local Agency shall give written notice to the State Treasurer and the Corporation prior to any Agency Installment Payment Date if the Local Agency knows prior to such date that it will be unable to make all or any portio...
	(e) Tax Exemption.  The Local Agency shall not make any use of the proceeds of this Local Agency Financing Contract or the Certificates or of any other amounts, regardless of the source, or of any property, and shall not take or refrain from taking an...
	(f) No Liens; Sale or Disposal; or Assignment.  The Local Agency shall not create, incur or assume any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the Property, except the rights of the Corporation as provided herein and...
	(g) Performance.  The Local Agency shall punctually pay the Agency Installment Payments and any Additional Costs in conformity with the terms and provisions hereof, and will faithfully observe and perform all the covenants, terms and other obligations...
	(h) Further Assurances.  The Local Agency will preserve and protect the rights of the State hereunder, and will warrant and defend such rights against all claims and demands of all Persons.  The Local Agency will promptly execute, make, deliver, file ...
	(i) Use of Property.  During the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract, the Local Agency will use the Property for the purposes of performing one or more of its essential governmental functions or responsibilities.  The Local Agency will not pe...
	(j) Financial Statements.  The Local Agency shall prepare annual financial statements and obtain audits thereof as required by law.  Upon the Written Request of the State Treasurer, the Local Agency shall provide the State Treasurer with a copy of its...
	(k) Use; Repairs.  For so long as the Local Agency is in possession of the Property, the Local Agency shall be solely responsible for the maintenance and repair, both ordinary and extraordinary, of the Property.  The Local Agency will (i) keep and mai...
	(l) Alterations.  The Local Agency will not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Property without the prior written consent of the State Treasurer unless such alterations, additions or improvements (i) maintain or increase the value ...
	(m) Location; Inspection.  The Property will be located within the State.  The Corporation will be entitled to inspect the Property during regular business hours upon at least one Business Day’s prior notice.  The Local Agency acknowledges, and consen...
	(n) Impositions and Charges.  If during the term of this Local Agency Financing Contract, any Imposition is imposed or incurred in connection with the sale and purchase of the Property by the Corporation to the State, or by the State to the Local Agen...
	(o) Risk of Loss; Damage; Destruction; Condemnation.  The Local Agency assumes all risk of loss of or damage to the Property from any cause whatsoever, and the obligation of the Local Agency to pay the Agency Installment Payments or to perform any oth...
	(p) Insurance.
	(i) The Local Agency shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, in full force and effect, comprehensive general liability insurance with respect to the Property in such amounts as may be reasonably determined by the Local Agency from time to time but ...
	(ii) The Local Agency shall maintain or cause to be maintained in full force and effect fire and extended coverage insurance with respect to the Property in such amounts and covering such risks as the Local Agency may reasonably determine from time to...
	(iii) The insurance required under paragraphs (i) and (ii) above:  (A) shall be provided by a financially responsible insurance company authorized to do business in the State; (B) except for the insurance required under paragraph (ii) above and as pro...



	Article VI  EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES
	Section 6.1 Agency Event of Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an “Agency Event of Default” hereunder:
	(a) Failure by the Local Agency to pay or cause to be paid any Agency Installment Payment required to be paid hereunder within 10 Business Days of the respective Agency Installment Payment Date;
	(b) Failure by the Local Agency to observe or perform any covenant, agreement, term or condition on its part to be observed or performed hereunder, other than as set forth in paragraph (a) above, for a period of 30 days after written notice from the S...
	(c) If any statement, representation, or warranty made by the Local Agency in this Local Agency Financing Contract or in any writing delivered by the Local Agency pursuant hereto or in connection herewith is false, misleading, or erroneous in any mate...
	(d) Inability of the Local Agency to generally pay its debts as such debts become due, or admission by the Local Agency in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally or the making by the Local Agency of a general assignment for the benefit of...

	Section 6.2 Rights of State Upon Agency Event of Default.  Whenever an Agency Event of Default hereunder shall have occurred and be continuing, the State shall have the following rights and may exercise any one or more of the following remedies:
	(a) By written notice to the Local Agency, require that the Local Agency promptly return possession and use of the Property to the State at any location specified in the United States (at the cost and expense of the Local Agency) in good repair, worki...
	(b) Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect the Agency Installment Payments then due and thereafter becoming due, or to enforce the observance or performance of any covenant, agreement or obligation of the...
	(c) Exercise any other rights or remedies it may have hereunder or under applicable law; and
	(d) Decline to execute any future financing contract on behalf of the Local Agency under the Act.

	Section 6.3 No Remedy Exclusive; Non-Waiver.  No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the State hereunder or under applicable law is intended to or shall be exclusive, and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other r...

	Article VII  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Section 7.1 Indemnification of State and the Corporation.  To the extent permitted by law, the Local Agency hereby releases the State and the Corporation from, agrees that the State and the Corporation shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify ...
	Section 7.2 Third Party Beneficiaries.  The Corporation and the Trustee, as assignee of the Corporation, shall be third party beneficiaries of this Local Agency Financing Contract.
	Section 7.3 Notices to Agency.  The notice address for the Local Agency shall be as set forth in the Notice of Intent.


	2023_GHFMO_NOI-and-Credit-APP_SCBA-EMSPurchase_08.09.2023_signed2.pdf
	_new_NOI FormI
	Local Agency Information

	_new_Credit App form
	General
	Litigation
	Assessed Valuation
	Tax Levy and Rate
	Financial Operations
	Debt


	ADPBA2C.tmp
	Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives


	Legal name: Pierce County Fire District #5
	County: Pierce
	Contact Person: Krystal Hackmeister
	Address: 10222 Bujacich Road NE
	Phone: 253-851-3111 ext 5024
	email: khackmeister@gigharborfire.org
	mcag: 1257
	zip: 98332
	fax: 
	property: Self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) and emergency medical equipment to include Monitor/Defibrillators, AutoPulse® Resuscitation, and  automated external defibrillator (AEDs).
	purpose: Replacement SCBA system for approximately 140 staff for the purpose of airway protection during responses that require SCBA equipment. Self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA). Includes emergency medical equipment of Monitor/Defibrillators, AutoPulse® Resuscitation, and  automated external defibrillator (AEDs) for emergency response calls.
	total cost: 2,145,000
	local funds: 0
	grants: 0
	request: 2,145,000
	Finance term: 5 years
	useful life: 15 years
	financing date: November 2023
	bond rating: AA
	date: 
	title: Finance Director
	RE: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Yes
	Date: 
	date eq: October/November 2023
	Text1: Pierce County Fire District #5
	Text4: Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One was created in 1945 as a volunteer Fire Department, with the first paid personnel being hired in 1973. A five-member Board of Commissioners governs the District, each representing the entire District. Today, 123 uniformed firefighters and paramedics staff Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One, with 24/7 staff operating from five locations across the District and four additional non-staffed stations. Gig Harbor offers a myriad of services such as fire suppression, emergency medical services, wildland firefighting, community risk reduction, and public education. Additionally, the department provides fire prevention, hazardous materials response, and technical rescue.  Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One serves approximately 54 square miles in suburban and rural areas.  The district serves an estimated population of 53,000 with 12,181 of its residents living within the City of Gig Harbor.  Nothing to report related to annexations or mergers.
	Text5: No known annexations, mergers or dissolution of the district. 
	Text6: 2023, 2022, 2021 Are 139, 141, 131 respectively. Yes, unions represent the majority of the District's employees. The Uniform and non-uniform collective bargaining agreement expires 12/1/2025. 
	Text7: No, not aware of any significant employer changes or closures. 
	Text8: N/A
	Dropdown9: [is not]
	Dropdown10: [The District]
	Dropdown11: [is not]
	Text2: Pierce County
	Text3: 53,000
	Dropdown1: [unincorporated]
	Total assessed value for regular levyCurrent year: 19,085,591,848
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyCurrent year: 18,986,950,391
	Current yearRow1: 2022
	Total assessed value for regular levyRow2: 15,384,235,043
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyRow2: N/A
	Current yearRow2: 2021
	Total assessed value for regular levyRow3: 13,528,952,960
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyRow3: N/A
	Current yearRow3: 2020
	Total assessed value for regular levyRow4: 12,466,922,881
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyRow4: N/A
	Current yearRow4: 2019
	Total assessed value for regular levyRow5: 11,489,618,336
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyRow5: N/A
	Current yearRow5: 2018
	Total assessed value for regular levyRow6: 10,491,594,238
	Reduced assessed value for excess or bond levyRow6: N/A
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Current Year: 1.185
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedCurrent Year: 22,633,111
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Current Year: 0.500, 9,542,795
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Current Year: 0.2031, 3,858,100
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountCurrent Year: Y, 6% inflator
	Current YearRow1: 2022
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Row2: 1.369
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedRow2: 21,066,070
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Row2: 0.439, 6,765,413
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Row2: N/A
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountRow2: Y, 6% inflator
	Current YearRow2: 2021
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Row3: 1.450
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedRow3: 19,621,609
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Row3: 0.465. 6,301,534
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Row3: N/A
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountRow3: Y, 6% inflator
	Current YearRow3: 2020
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Row4: 1.464
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedRow4: 18,262,690
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Row4: 0.470, 5,865,220
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Row4: N/A
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountRow4: Y, 6% inflator
	Current YearRow4: 2019
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Row5: 1.486
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedRow5: 17,078,477
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Row5: 0.477, 5,484,920
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Row5: N/A
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountRow5: Y, 6% inflator
	Current YearRow5: 2018
	Regular Levy Rate per 1000Row6: 1.500
	Regular Levy Total  LeviedRow6: 15,737,391
	Other Levy Rate per 1000Row6: 0.482, 5,059,839
	Bond Levy Rate per 1000Row6: N/A
	Levy Lid Lift Included YN If Y provide amountRow6: Y, 6% inflator
	Text12: Yes, the EMS Levy Lid Lift Lift was approved by voters November 2022 for six years. The Fire Expense Levy Lid Lift is being presented to voters August 2023 for a six year levy lid lift. 
	Text13: No
	Text14: Property Tax collections for collection in 2024 will see slight flattening of assessed valuation rather than the growth the District has experienced over the past several years. This slowing in growth pace is similar across the county, however Pierce county is not experiencing the declines in assessed valuation that other neighboring counties are right now. 
	Debt: Current contracts represent less than one half of one percent (0.5%) of the District's budgeted revenues. Pierce County, Fire Protection services - annual term, $22,024 based on assessed value and District's levy rate.City of Gig Harbor, Fire inspection services - annual term auto-renews, $155,000+CPI inflator. Small contracts for Peninsula Schools, Pen Met Parks, WA State Parks, and Tacoma city Light, totaling less than $15,000 combined for all of these regional contracts. 
	Debt No 1Description of debt: UTGO Bond
	Debt No 2Description of debt: 
	Debt No 3Description of debt: 
	Debt No 1First payment date: 6/1/2023
	Debt No 2First payment date: 
	Debt No 3First payment date: 
	Debt No 1Last payment date: 12/1/2042
	Debt No 2Last payment date: 
	Debt No 3Last payment date: 
	Debt No 1Amount originally borrowed: 47,435,000
	Debt No 2Amount originally borrowed: 
	Debt No 3Amount originally borrowed: 
	Debt No 1Amount currently outstanding: 47,435,000
	Debt No 2Amount currently outstanding: 
	Debt No 3Amount currently outstanding: 
	Debt No 1Annual payments due: 3.7M-4M annually
	Debt No 2Annual payments due: 
	Debt No 3Annual payments due: 
	Debt No 1Fund responsible for repayment: Go Bond Fund - Excess levy
	Debt No 2Fund responsible for repayment: 
	Debt No 3Fund responsible for repayment: 
	Text15: The Districts maintains fund balance in excess of its 90 day cash fund balance policies. No current plans to draw down fund balance except for planned assets arriving in 2023/2024 (~$1M) and if needed for economic downturn, or possibly if a Levy Lid Lift in 2023 is not successful. 
	Dropdown16: [Voted]
	Text9: Audited 2016- 2021. Unaudited 2022 Statements, current audit in progress.
	Check Box11: Yes
	Check Box13: Yes
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box14: Yes
	undefined: This intent to borrow with the LOCAL program was disclosed and documented in the District's 2022 official statement and bond rating review with S&P.
	Printed Name: Krystal Hackmeister
	Text17: 08/09/2023
	Text18: Finance Director
	Text19: The District maintains a Reserve Fund totaling 8.3 million. This fund is rolled up in the financial statements under the General/Operating Fund. The Reserve fund ended the year 2017 with $4.2 million, and has steadily increased to 8.3 million over the past 5 years. (2017-4.2, 4.73, 5.6, 6.5, 6.5, 6.9, 2023-8.3). The District plans to use $1.8 million for future capital needs in the next 6 year period. The unassigned operating fund balance while used to meet cash flow requirements, has also steadily grown from 5.1 million in 2017, ending 2022 with 12.5 million. 
	Text20: No, the District plans to use operating funds to pay for lease payments. 
	Text21: The District anticipates using the LOCAL program for future purchases for medic units and medical equipment totaling $1 million in the coming 18-36 months. 
	Text22: No short term loans or obligations to report. 


